
AGENDA 
SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

September 10, 2025 
 

1.  Call to Order 
2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Approval of Minutes of August 13, 2025 
4.  Correspondence 
5.  Public Comments, Audience Members are allowed 3 minutes to discuss items not on 

the Agenda (5 minutes for groups) 
6.  Approval of Agenda 

 
7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS        

A) Affordable Housing Updates  
B) Short Term Rental Updates 

a. Granicus 
b. Inspections 
c. Prosecutions – Resolution 25-21 to approve Ordinance Enforcement Officer 

C)   
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
A) Public Hearing – to set fire millage 
B) Resolution 25-22 Fire Millage Resolution 
C) Resolution 25-23 to Amend Ordinance #160 Lighthouse Ridge Pilot 
D) Public Hearing  – 09160 M140 – 425 Agreement Amendment 
E) Resolution 25-24 to Amend 425 Agreement 
F) Resolution 25-25 to approve L4029 
G) Renew PUD 
H)  
 

9. REPORTS 
Airport 
Building/Electrical/Mechanical 
Building Committee  
Fire/Ambulance 
Library 
Park Committee  
Planning Commission 
Roads 
Senior Services 
Water/Sewer Authority 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

10. TREASURER’S REPORT 

11. BOARD COMMENTS  

12. ADJOURNMENT  

 



SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

   MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 13, 2025 

 

Present:  Stein, Fisher, Bertorelli, Poole, DeGrandchamp, Lewandowski, and 

Wiatrowski  

Meeting was called to order by Supervisor Stein at 7:30 p.m.  

Motion by Wiatrowski, supported by Lewandowski, to approve the Minutes of 

the July 9, 2025 Regular Meeting as presented.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Adam DeBoer from SHPD  gave a report. Brandon Hinz from SHAES was in 

attendance and gave a report and Gail Gladney gave a report from Van Buren 

County. 

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Wiatrowski, to approve the Agenda.  All 

voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Supervisor Stein reported that he has met with a couple of different developers 

who are interested in affordable housing projects.  He also reported that Granicus 

is close to being implemented.  Trustee Wiatrowski reported 37 inspections have 

been completed.  Clerk Bertorelli reported that the attorney has been contacted 

regarding prosecuting STR owners that have been unresponsive. 

Motion by Poole, supported by Fisher, to adopt Resolution 25-19 Adopting 

Ordinance 169 Amending the STR Ordinance.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  

Motion carried. 

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Wiatrowski, to allow Wayne Pecina to 

have his property at 09160 M140 removed from the 425 Agreement and draw up 

documents for the amendment.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Poole, supported by Lewandowski, to set a Public Hearing for the Fire 

Millage on September 10, 2025 at 7:30 p.m.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Poole, supported by Wiatrowski, to approve the Special Land Use for 

08729 M140 Hwy as recommended by the Planning Commission.  All voted in 

favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Poole, supported by Wiatrowski, to approve the PUD on 73.5 Street as 

recommended by the Planning Commission.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Bertorelli, supported by Fisher, to approve Resolution 25-20 Budget 

Amendments.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion carried. 

Reports from various committees and authorities were received. W.C. Askew was 

in attendance for the Road Commission, Jean Stein reported for the Library and 

Diane Rigozzi reported for Senior Services. 



Motion by Fisher, supported by Wiatrowski, to approve payment of anticipated 

bills in the amount of $189,153.09.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion 

carried. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:36 p.m. 

 

_________________________               ___________________________ 

Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk                           Ross Stein, Supervisor 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH HAVEN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER 

 

 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of South Haven 

("Township"), Van Buren County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall in said Township on the 

10th day of September, 2025 at 7:30 p.m.  

PRESENT: ____________________________________________________________________  

           _____________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:  _____________________________________________________________________ 

The following Resolution was offered by_______________________________________ 

____________________________ and seconded by____________________________________.  

WHEREAS, the Township has approved a Short Term Rental Ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, the Township has hired a firm to seek out property owners who rent their 

properties on a short term basis; and  

WHEREAS, the Township has determined that some property owners are not complying with 

registering their homes; and 

WHEREAS, the Township has other General Law Ordinances that need to be enforced; 

THEREFORE, the Township Board of the Charter Township of South Haven, Van Buren 

County, resolves as follows: 

1. The Township Board of the Charter Township of South Haven has determined that 

hiring an Ordinance Enforcement Officer is necessary; and  

2. The Township Clerk is authorized and directed to seek out a firm or an employee to 

fill that need. 

 

ADOPTED: 

 

YEAS:  ____________________________ 

 

NAYS:  ____________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN   ) 

) 

COUNTY OF VAN BUREN  )  

 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Township Clerk of the Charter Township of 

South Haven, Van Buren  County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 

and complete copy of certain proceedings taken by the Township Board of said Township at a 

Regular meeting held on the 10th day of September 2025.   

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Brenda Bertorelli, Township Clerk  



SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
RESOLUTION # 25-22 

 
WHEREAS, it is statutory duty of South Haven Charter Township Board to authorize the levy of  
The Township’s millage rates for 2025, and: 
 
WHEREAS, the South Haven Charter Township Board held a Public Hearing to determine the 
Fire Millage Rate, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that after deliberation and in consideration of information 
received from SHAES the South haven Charter Township Board have decided, it is in the best 
interest of the Township, to levy _____ mills for the Fire Millage 
 
MOTION BY:_____________________________________ 
 
SUPPORTED BY:__________________________________ 
 
Voting Yes:  ________________________________________________________________ 

Voting No:  _________________________________________________________________ 

Absent:____________________________________________________________________ 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

I, Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk of South Haven Charter Township, Van Buren County, Michigan, 
herewith certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a portion of the proceedings of said 
Board at its regular meeting on Wednesday, September 10, 2025. 

 

_______________________________________ 

Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk 

 
 

 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH HAVEN 

RESOLUTION NO.  – 25-23 

 

RESOLUTION TO INTRODUCE  

 ORDINANCE #170 TO AMEND ORDINANCE #160 TO PROVIDE FOR  

A SERVICE CHARGE IN LIEU OF TAXES FOR DWELLING UNITS 

FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS OR FAMILIES (LIGHTHOUSE RIDGE 

APARTMENTS) 

 

At a meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of South Haven 

("Township"), Van Buren County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall in said Township on the 

_____ day of__________________, 2025 at ______ p.m. 

PRESENT:             

            

ABSENT:                   

                       

 The following Resolution was offered by ________________________________ and 

seconded by ________________________________. 

WHEREAS, South Haven Charter Township wishes to encourage developers to build 

affordable housing by accepting a service charge or payment in lieu of property taxes (a “PILOT”), 

as authorized by the State Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, 1966 PA 356, MCL 

125.1401 et seq., as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the Township adopted an Ordinance creating a PILOT for the proposed 

Lighthouse Ridge Apartments (the “Ordinance”); and 

WHEREAS, the Township desires to amend the Ordinance to remove the termination 

provision Section 9 per comments from the Michigan State Housing Development Authority; and 

WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Michigan Charter Township Act, Act 359 of 1947, MCL 

42.1 et seq, as amended (“Act”) requires each proposed ordinance be introduced in written or 



printed form, identified by a number and short title and, following introduction of the proposed 

ordinance, requires the Clerk to publish the proposed ordinance as provided in the Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Township Board of the Charter Township of South Haven, 

resolves as follows: 

1. The Township hereby introduces Ordinance No. 170, An Ordinance to Amend 

Ordinance to Provide For A Service Charge In Lieu of Taxes for Dwelling Units for Low Income 

Persons and Families (Lighthouse Ridge Apartments), attached as Exhibit A.   

2. The Township Board will consider adopting the Ordinance at a meeting on October 

8, 2025, at 7:30 p.m. 

3. Pursuant to Section 20 of the Act, the Clerk is directed to publish the Ordinance in 

accordance with Section 8 of the Act by posting the Ordinance in the office of the Clerk and on 

the Township’s web site.  The Clerk is further directed to publish notice of posting in a form 

substantially conforming to that attached as Exhibit B to this resolution describing the purpose of 

the Ordinance and that the Ordinance is posted in the office of the Clerk, on the Township’s web 

site and in a newspaper of general circulation in the Township within seven (7) days of the posting.   

4. A copy of the Ordinance shall be available for examination at the office of the Clerk 

and copies may be provided for a reasonable charge.   

5. Any and all resolutions that are in conflict with this Resolution are hereby repealed 

to the extent necessary to give this Resolution full force and effect. 

 

YEAS:  ____________________________ 

NAYS:  ____________________________  

 

 

THE RESOLUTION WAS DECLARED ADOPTED. 



 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) ss.  

COUNTY OF VAN BUREN ) 

 

  

I, Brenda Bertorelli, Township Clerk of the Charter Township of South Haven, hereby certify this 

to be a true and complete copy of Resolution No. ____, duly adopted at a meeting of the Township 

Board held on the 10th day of September, 2025 at 7:30 p.m. 

 

 

              

       Brenda Bertorelli, Township Clerk 

 



EXHIBIT B 

EXHIBIT A  

 

SOUTH HAVEN TOWNSHIP 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR A SERVICE CHARGE IN 

LIEU OF TAXES FOR DWELLING UNITS FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS AND 

FAMILIES 

(LIGHTHOUSE RIDGE APARTMENTS)  

 

THE TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH HAVEN ORDAINS: 

  

 Section 1. Removal Of Section 9. 

 

 Section 9 of Ordinance to Provide for a Service Charge in Lieu of Taxes for Dwelling 

Units for Low Income Persons and Families (Lighthouse Ridge Apartments) entitled 

“Termination” is hereby removed in its entirety.  

 

Section 2. Severability. 

 

The various sections and provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be severable, 

and should any section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by any court of competent 

jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance 

as a whole or any section or provision of this Ordinance other than the section or provision so 

declared to be unconstitutional or invalid. 

 

 Section 3. Inconsistent Ordinances. 

 

 All other ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby 

repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 

 

 Section 4. Effective Date  

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect immediately after publication. 

 

  

Township Clerk 

 

Dated:  _____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT B 

 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH HAVEN 

 

NOTICE OF POSTING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. ___ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR  

A SERVICE CHARGE IN LIEU OF TAXES FOR DWELLING UNITS 

FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS OR FAMILIES (LIGHTHOUSE RIDGE 

APARTMENTS) 

 

 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at its meeting on _____________, 2025, the Township Board 

received a proposed ordinance entitled “An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance to Provide For A 

Service Charge In Lieu of Taxes for Dwelling Units for Low Income Persons and Families 

(Lighthouse Ridge Apartments),” which will be considered for adoption on _____________, 2025, 

at ______p.m., at a meeting of the Township Board at the Township Hall, 09761 Blue Star 

Memorial Hwy, South Haven, MI 49090.  The proposed ordinance would amend the Ordinance to 

Provide for a Service Charge In Lieu of Taxes for Dwelling Units for Low Income Persons and 

Families (Lighthouse Ridge Apartments) to remove Section 9, Termination in its entirety.   

 

The proposed ordinance is available in its entirety for public inspection.  The proposed ordinance 

is posted at the office of the Township Clerk, 09761 Blue Star Memorial Hwy, South Haven, MI 

49090 and on the website of the Charter Township of South Haven, 

http://www.southhaventwp.com.   

 
 

 

 Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk 

 South Haven Township Hall 

 09761 Blue Star Memorial Hwy 

 South Haven, MI 49090 

 (269) 637-3305 

 

 
79676:00001:201854434-1 





















SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
RESOLUTION # 25-25 

 
WHEREAS, it is statutory duty of South Haven Charter Township Board to authorize the levy of  
The Township’s millage rates for 2025, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the South Haven Charter Township Board has received the L4029 from the County 
and held a Public Hearing to determine the Fire Millage Rate, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the South Haven Charter Township Board  holds a Public Hearing every October to 
present the Annual Budget and held a public hearing last October, 2024 for the 2025 Budget; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that with consideration to the Township’s budgetary needs 
for the 2025 fiscal year, and after consideration of obligatory voted millage, the South Haven 
Charter Township Board have decided, in the best interest of the Township, to levy ______ 
mills, which is .5243 mills for Operating, .7368 mills for Police, .9939 mills for Library, .9825 
mills for Senior, .2484 mills for Recreation, .2335 mills for Library(2), and 1.4246 mills for Roads 
against the Taxable Value of all real property and personal property in the county.  The Fire 
District Millage will be ______ mills on real property. 
 
MOTION BY:_____________________________________ 
 
SUPPORTED BY:__________________________________ 
 
Voting Yes:  ________________________________________________________________ 

Voting No:  _________________________________________________________________ 

Absent:____________________________________________________________________ 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

I, Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk of South Haven Charter Township, Van Buren County, Michigan, 
herewith certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a portion of the proceedings of said 
Board at its regular meeting on Wednesday, September 10, 2025. 

 

_______________________________________ 

Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk 



 
 

 
 































 

 

            SOUTH HAVEN AREA REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY MINUTES 

 

AUGUST 20, 2025 

 

Pursuant to Act 267 of 1976, as amended (Open Meetings Act), the Board Members of the 

South Haven Area Regional Airport Authority (SHARAA) met at the South Haven Area 

Regional Airport, 73020 C.R. 380, South Haven, Michigan on Wednesday, August 20, 2025. 

 

  Jon Woodhams_ Called a regular meeting of the South Haven Area Regional Airport 

Authority Board to order at 7:30 pm. 

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Jon Woodhams, Geneva Township, Chairman 

Brent Nichols-City of South Haven, Vice Chairman 

                                 Mary Hosley, City of South Haven 

                                 Todd Jensen, South Haven Township 

          Mike Gillian, Covert Township 

          Julian Allen, Covert Township 

          Ross Woodhams, alternate for City of South Haven 

  
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 

            Fred Bower, alternate for Covert Township 

            Jim Sankofski, Casco Township 

 

 

I. Agenda: __Brent Nichols_ motioned to approve the agenda for the August 20, 2025, Airport Board 

meeting. __Mary Hosley__ seconded this motion. All voted in favor. The motion to approve the 

agenda carries. YEA   6_ / NA _0_       

 

II.          Public Comments:   NONE 
 
 

          _Mary Hosley_ motioned to approve the consent agenda, and  Mike Gillian__    

            seconded this motion: 

Consent Agenda:  
Expenses from: 

▪ JULY 2025 Totaling:  $58,445.06 

 

▪ Manager’s report dated: August 20, 2025 

 

▪ Minutes of  July 16, 2025 

 

 

A roll call vote to approve the consent agenda was taken and all voted in favor. The motion carries.  

YEA  6_ / NA  0_ 

 

III.     Committee Reports: NONE 
 



 

 

             Julian Allen, Covert Township 

Jim Sankofski, Casco Township 

Fred Bower, Covert Township 

Nancy Kelley, Treasurer 

Dan Sanborn, Secretary 

 

IV.    Old Business:  Airport Management presented driveway maintenance quotes. After 

discussion, Mary Hosley motioned to accept the proposal from Arnt Asphalt in the amount of 

$14,800, or less if negotiable at Manager’s discretion, to repair, seal, and coat the entrance 

driveway known as Don Woodhams Drive. Todd Jensen seconded this motion. A roll call vote 

was taken and all voted in favor. The motion carries.  YEA  6_ / NA  0_ 
 

Airport Management provided update on SHARA bike trail proposal. Project is on hold for the 

present time.  

 

V. New Business:  

Discussion was held regarding switching banking institutions for improved interest earnings. 

Todd Jensen motioned to move the Authority’s banking to Sturgis Bank. Brent Nichols seconded 

this motion. A roll call vote was taken and all voted in favor. The motion carries. YEA  6_ / 

NA _0_ 

 

Brent Nichols motioned to add Jon Woodhams (Chairman), Dan Sanborn (Airport Manager), and 

Nancy Kelley (Treasurer) to the signature card for Sturgis Bank. Mary Hosley seconded this 

motion. A roll call vote was taken and all voted in favor. The motion carries.  YEA  6_ / NA  

0_  

 

South Haven Rotary Club President Amy Nichols and Club member Don Hodgman reported on 

the annual Fly-In and pancake breakfast. Over 1800 breakfasts were served, 44 aircraft visited, 

and Redhawk Helicopters reported 79 riders. The Rotary expressed appreciation for the 

collaboration with the Authority and reviewed the allocation of proceeds to community 

programs.  

 

IV. Member Comments: Thank you to John Carlson for his leadership excellence and emphasis on 

safe operations as his time as Airport Manager.  

 

 

 Jon Woodhams_ moved to adjourn the meeting __Mary Hosley_ seconded this motion. The 

meeting was adjourned at: _ 8:23 pm__ 

 

SOUTH HAVEN AREA REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

Jonathon Woodhams, Chairman 

Brent Nichols, City of South Haven, Vice Chair 

Todd Jensen, South Haven Township 

Mary Hosley, City of South Haven 

Ross Woodhams, alternate for City of South Haven 

Mike Gillian, alternate for Covert Township 

















Dear South Haven Public School Board members, City of South Haven Council 
persons, South Haven Township Board of Trustees and South Haven Area 

Recreation Authority Board members: 
 

On behalf of the Recreation Director search and interview committee, we are 
thrilled to announce that we've hired our first Community Recreation 

Director.  Although the process took longer than expected and we pivoted to a 
full-time position, we believe strongly that we have the right person to fill this 

role and lead our efforts. 
 

Chris Van Hekken joins us from Grand Haven where he has served as the 
Executive Director of the Northwest Ottawa Recreation Authority since 

2019.  Chris has led the development and implementation of many youth and 
adult recreational programs, established community partnerships with schools, 

nonprofits and businesses, spearheaded community fundraising efforts, and 

secured external funding for recreational programming.  Many of these initiatives 
and results are what we hope to accomplish in South Haven.  At this point in his 

career, Chris is interested in using his experience to build a recreation program 
from the ground up - which is exactly what we need! In addition to his Recreation 

Director role, Chris will also be serving as the SHARA Administrator which will 
ensure common focus and alignment among all recreational stakeholder groups. 

 
Chris graduated with a B.A. in Business Management from Aquinas College and 

also received his M.A. in Athletic Administration from Belhaven University.  Chris 
has also served in many athletic positions including as Varsity baseball coach at 

Western Michigan Christian and Grand Haven High Schools, and owner/coach of 
the Holland Baseball Academy.  After serving for many years in the Insurance 

industry out of college, Chris made a career shift in 2018 towards the 
recreational leadership path.  Chris and his wife Jennifer reside in Holland, and 

they have two adult children, Kaitlyn and Carson.    

 
We will be attending future meetings to introduce Chris to your Boards and 

Councils.  We feel extremely fortunate to have someone of Chris' background and 
experience be part of the South Haven community, and are very confident he will 

have an immediate and lasting impact on our Recreational efforts. 
 

Please feel free to reach out with any questions or more information.   
 

Best regards,  
 

Kelly Schriner and Scott Reinert 
 


	September Agenda
	Aug 2025 Minutes
	Resolution 25-21 to approve Ordinance Enforcement Officer
	Fire Millage Resolution 25-22
	Resolution 25-23 to Introduce PILOT Amendment (Lighthouse)(201854434.1)
	Resolution 25-24 Approving Second Amendment to Act 425 Agreement - 9.2.25(201867280.1)
	Resolution 25-25 for L4029
	Memo to Board Sept 2025, renew PUD oct 2014
	8 AUG 2025 Airport Authority Meeting Minutes
	MTS Report
	Planning Commission August Minutes
	Treasurers Report
	Chris Van Hekken - Community Recreation Director 2025

